
 

Agenda No. 2025-16 August 25, 2025 Page 1 of 4 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2025-16 

REGULAR MEETING – AUGUST 25, 2025 
MEETING WILL BE HELD VIA ZOOM WEBINAR AND AT 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

SPECIAL WORK SESSION 

5:00 p.m. – Target-Based Budgeting Core Allocation 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 p.m.  

 

 

1. ROLL CALL 

 

 

2. INVOCATION 

 

 

3. FLAG SALUTATION 

 

 

4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards) 

 

 

5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS (oral communications to the City Council on items pertaining 

to City business that are not up for public hearing). The total comment period is up to one 

hour, and testimony is limited to three minutes. Any person wishing to speak needs to sign 

up on the list located in the hallway or must have signed up in advance using the procedures 

for providing online testimony found at the City’s website. Respectful standards of 

decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers. Remarks should be directed to 

the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Councilmember or member of the 

staff. In consideration of others, please silence all cell phones and electronic devices. 

 

 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Consent agenda items are indicated by asterisks (*). Consent agenda items are considered 

together unless a councilmember requests that the item be returned to the general agenda. 

Ordinances on the approved consent agenda are automatically advanced to the next regular 

meeting for second reading and public hearing. All other items on the approved consent 

agenda are passed as final. 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89535060265?pwd=V3drYnBzdWRHa0ZoNjhiNzVjbVJpZz09


 

Agenda No. 2025-16 August 25, 2025 Page 2 of 4 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 *a) Regular Meeting Minutes of August 11, 2025 

 

 

8. SPECIAL ORDERS 

 

  a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following alcohol license applications for renewal. Public testimony will be taken 

and limited to three minutes.  

 

Lic. # DBA Type Licensee Address 

4862 
Southern Glazer’s 

of AK 

General 

Wholesale 

Southern Glazer’s Wine and 

Spirits of Alaska, LLC 

3101 Peger Road, 

Bay 2 

4548 Brewsters 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Restaurant Concepts, LLC 

354 Old Steese 

Highway 

5051 Asiana Restaurant 
Restaurant/ 

Eating Place 
Young Mi Jin 2001 Airport Way 

 

  b) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following marijuana license applications for renewal. Public testimony will be 

taken and limited to three minutes.  

 

Lic. # DBA Type Licensee Address 

22809 
Airport Way Best 

Bud 
Retail Marijuana Store 

Airport Way Trade 

Center, LLC 
3598 Airport Way 

10589 
Nature’s Releaf, 

LLC 
Retail Marijuana Store 

Nature’s Releaf, 

LLC 
507 7th Avenue 

39378 Blaze, LLC Retail Marijuana Store Blaze, LLC 
607 Old Steese Highway, 

Suite 106 

16006 
Arctic Bakery, 

LLC 

Marijuana Product 

Manufacturing Facility 
Arctic Bakery, LLC 1409 Well Street 

10869 Grass Station 49 Retail Marijuana Store 
The Grass Station, 

LLC 
1326 Cushman Street 

 

  c) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following alcohol license application for transfer of ownership and restaurant 

endorsement. Public testimony will be taken and limited to three minutes. 

Type/Lic.: Beverage Dispensary, Lic. #4247 

To DBA:  This and That Grill, LLC 

From DBA: Brewster’s 

To Owner: This and That Grill, LLC 

From Owner: Restaurant Concepts, LLC 

Location: 3578 Airport Way, Fairbanks (no change) 

 

 



 

Agenda No. 2025-16 August 25, 2025 Page 3 of 4 

9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 

 

   a) Special Reports  

 

 

10. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

  a) Ordinance No. 6322 – An Ordinance Funding the Collective Bargaining Agreement 

Between the City of Fairbanks and Fairbanks Firefighters Union and Amending the 

2025 City Operating Budget. Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. SECOND READING 

AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 

 

12. NEW BUSINESS 

 

*a) Resolution No. 5183 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Request 

and Accept Funds from the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) for FY2026 

Emergency Service Patrol (ESP) Support. Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. 

 

*b) Resolution No. 5184 – A Resolution to Extend the 2024 Financial Audit Remittance 

for Explore Fairbanks. Introduced by Councilmember Marney. 

 

*c) Ordinance No. 6323 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 

46, Article IV, Offenses Involving Nuisance, Adding Regulations Limiting the 

Time Period Temporary Signs, Including Political Signs, Can Be Displayed Within 

the City of Fairbanks. Introduced by Councilmember Sprinkle.  

 

*d) Ordinance No. 6324 – An Ordinance Enacting Fairbanks General Code Section 2-

65, Chief of Staff Authorities. Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. 

 

*e) Ordinance No. 6325 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Section 

2-63, Succession to Office of Acting Mayor, and Section 2-64, Salary of Acting 

Mayor. Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. 

 

 

13. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

14. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 



 

Agenda No. 2025-16 August 25, 2025 Page 4 of 4 

 

16. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

 

17. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

  a) AFL-CIO Labor Negotiations [permissible under State law, including the provision 

at AS 44.62.310(c)(1)] 

 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT  



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, AUGUST 11, 2025 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
The City Council convened at 6:30 p.m. on the above date, following a 5:00 p.m. Work Session 
on Target-Based Budgeting, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks City Council via Zoom 
webinar and in City Council Chambers at 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Mayor 
David Pruhs presiding and the following Councilmembers in attendance: 
 
Councilmembers Present: Jerry Cleworth, Seat A 

Valerie Therrien, Seat B 
 Sue Sprinkle, Seat C 
 Crystal Tidwell, Seat D 

Lonny Marney, Seat E 
 John Ringstad, Seat F 
 
Absent: None 

 
Also Present: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 

Thomas Chard, City Attorney 
Michael Sanders, Chief of Staff 
Margarita Bell, Chief Financial Officer 
Jake Merritt, Human Resources Director 
Richard Sweet, Deputy Police Chief (remotely) 
Nathan Werner, Police Captain 
Andrew Coccaro, Fire Chief 
Kristi Merideth, FECC Manager (remotely) 
Jeremiah Cotter, Public Works Director 
Bob Pristash, City Engineer 
Jarrod Zerbe, Code Compliance and Safety Specialist 

 
INVOCATION 
 
The invocation was given by City Clerk Danyielle Snider. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
At the request of Mayor Pruhs, Ms. Therrien led the flag salutation. 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
[Clerk Note: Names of citizens who provide comments may not be spelled correctly if their name 
was illegible on the physical sign-up sheet.] 
 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 9 

Robert Shields – R. Shields stated that he had previously spoken before the Council as well as 
emailed copies of adopted resolutions and letters of interest regarding his group’s vision for 
redevelopment ideas. He expressed disappointment that those things had not led to a City Council 
Work Session, as he had hoped and requested. He acknowledged that the concept of regenerative 
economics is complex and shared that they have drafted an ordinance which they hope will be 
adopted to facilitate a conversation about unique design processes. R. Shields asserted that the 
Polaris Building property is just one piece of an overall idea for how cities can be redesigned and 
that he had recently brought private equity investors to Fairbanks to show those locally what could 
be possible. He claimed that a message about Fairbanks not having a bright future has been 
repeated often, and that does not have to be the case. He expressed his desire to work with the City 
to explore opportunities and sponsor his group’s Tour of Future Cities, which is scheduled for 
October. He reviewed funding sources and explained that he is trying to advocate for viable 
solutions to lower the cost of living and improve the quality of life for all of Fairbanks. 
 
Ms. Therrien asked if he had seen the proposed substitute ordinance regarding the Polaris Work 
Group. R. Shields indicated that he had not. Ms. Therrien asked if he would like time to review 
it. R. Shields stated he would be happy to look at anything the Council was willing to share and 
that he would love the chance to have a more detailed discussion with any or all Councilmembers. 
 
Victor Buberge – V. Buberge shared that he had missed the last few Council Meetings due to being 
ill. He stated that he moved to Fairbanks in 1975 and has never seen anything implemented like 
the new bicycle lanes on Barnette Street. He asked about the overall purpose of the bike lanes and 
who was responsible for them, noting that he has not seen a single cyclist using the lanes all 
summer, although he has still seen cyclists on the adjacent sidewalks. He posed the question of 
whether these types of lanes are needed somewhere else instead of or in addition to Barnette Street. 
 
Mayor Pruhs indicated that later in the meeting he would invite the City Engineer to speak on a 
few items, including the bicycle lanes. 
 
Mayor Pruhs, hearing no more requests for comment, declared Citizens’ Comments closed. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ms. Tidwell, seconded by Ms. Therrian, moved to APPROVE the agenda and consent agenda. 
 
Mayor Pruhs pulled item 12(a), Resolution No. 5182, from the consent agenda. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for objection to the APPROVAL of the 
agenda, as amended, and hearing none, so ORDERED. 

 
Clerk Snider read the consent agenda, as amended, into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of July 28, 2025 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA  



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 9 

SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council held a public hearing and considered the following alcohol 

license applications for renewal: 
 

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

426 The Bakery Restaurant Beverage 
Dispensary 

The Bakery Restaurant, 
Inc. 

44 College Road, 
Suite A 

4314 Gallo’s Mexican Restaurant Beverage 
Dispensary 

Northern Lights 
Business, Inc. 60 College Road 

556 International Hotel and Bar Beverage 
Dispensary Hard Work, LLC 122 N. Turner Street 

 
Ms. Tidwell, seconded by Ms. Sprinkle, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the alcohol license 
applications for renewal. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for testimony and hearing none, declared Public Testimony closed. 
 
Mayor Pruhs stated he reviewed call reports from the Fairbanks Emergency Communications 
Center (FECC) for each location and had no cause for concern with any applicant. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked if the rumor she had heard about The Bakery Restaurant closing had any truth 
to it. City Attorney Thomas Chard confirmed that, to the best of his knowledge, that was a rumor. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATIONS FOR RENEWAL AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Marney, Sprinkle, Therrien, Cleworth, Tidwell, Ringstad 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Pruhs shared that while in Washington, D.C. he had spoken with Senator Lisa Murkowski 
regarding the City’s second application for an ambulance bus and that she confirmed that a request 
for $815,000 had been submitted though not yet funded. He discussed scenarios where having such 
equipment would be vital. He invited Jarrod Zerbe, Code Compliance and Safety Specialist, to 
provide a report on abatements and efforts to take care of blighted properties.  
 
J. Zerbe discussed the learning curve from the past year since his position was created and the 
work between him and various department heads to ensure understanding and proficiency with the 
process of abatement and efforts to address blighted properties. He acknowledged each property’s 
unique situation in terms of history and ownership. He reviewed the number and types of clean-
ups that had taken place year-to-date. J. Zerbe stated that the first major clean-up will be done later 
in the fall and would result in a structure needing to be vacated, which would mean some 
individuals would lose housing. He explained that there would likely be up to 12 roll-off containers 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 9 

of waste removed from the property and that the owners had been unwilling to comply. He 
indicated that it was not a pleasant situation but that important steps must be taken to resolve the 
issues. He thanked Public Works Director Jeremiah Cotter for assisting with labor coordination 
and acknowledged that a crew from the Fairbanks Rescue Mission would also be heavily involved. 
J. Zerbe provided an update on the progress to resolve a blighted property on Willow Street which 
was moving forward in terms of the actual work to clean it up, although the process of the City 
acquiring the property was stalled due to waiting for appropriate Power of Attorney documents to 
be produced. Mayor Pruhs gave an additional explanation on the steps that would occur, with the 
Council’s involvement once the documents were received and the property was ready to be deeded 
to the City. He noted that it was a unique situation that would require careful, deliberate action 
every step of the way. J. Zerbe reported that there are three remaining properties deemed blighted 
but have an approved clean-up plan in place. He discussed a plan to have a monthly, collaborative 
meeting between all departments involved with the various aspects of Code Enforcement, to ensure 
they are on the same page as to what issues exist and which properties should be prioritized. 
 
Ms. Therrien asked J. Zerbe if he had filed court paperwork to have the individuals removed from 
the property he referenced. J. Zerbe stated that he had not and that the hope is that the inhabitants 
would be willing to vacate voluntarily. He stated that, preferably, the issues, specifically the water 
being disconnected, would get resolved by the owner so no one would have to leave. 
 
Attorney Chard clarified that, to his knowledge, the Building Official intends to declare the 
structure as a dangerous property that is not fit for human occupancy, and that once that designation 
had been made, it would be considered a misdemeanor for anyone to live there. He agreed that the 
preference is voluntary vacation but reiterated that the designation of the structure by the Building 
Official is why the City is not pursuing the civil court route Ms. Therrien had referenced. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked J. Zerbe which situation he is finding more issues with: renter-occupied 
properties or owner-occupied properties. J. Zerbe stated that it depends on the situation but that 
most instances involving hoarding or the collection of debris are owner inhabited. Ms. Sprinkle 
asked if he is working on creating a tool that allows department heads or the Council to see the 
current status on any properties on the abatement/blight list, to assist with efforts to avoid 
information being siloed. J. Zerbe shared that he has gotten to a good place with knowing who to 
talk to about various issues. He stated that information is flowing to him, then he initiates 
conversations. He explained that he would like to see all parties meet to have thorough, open 
discussions about every property. Ms. Sprinkle expressed the desire for J. Zerbe to have an 
effective tool to help facilitate his work, considering the complexity. J. Zerbe stated that software 
is being adopted by the Public Works Department to handle projects, tasks, etc. and that they have 
discussed how this, or a similar tool, could be implemented for his work. 
 
Ms. Tidwell asked for more details on the three properties which J. Zerbe mentioned have clean-
up plans in progress and how he is doing with funding for the overall program. J. Zerbe reported 
that he has about $125,000 available in the budget and that the clean-ups so far had been done very 
frugally thanks to cooperative property owners. He stated that of the remaining three, two are fairly 
small and one has an October deadline, which means the City will likely not take action until the 
spring, should the owner fail to complete their approved plan. He reviewed the communication 
process with property owners. 
 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 9 

Mr. Ringstad discussed the progress made in the year and a half since the City began taking this 
work more seriously. He noted that three properties had been cleaned up in 2024, four had been 
completed so far in 2025, and that, according to J. Zerbe, another seven were underway. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked for more details on how J. Zerbe receives information about vacant properties 
that need to be addressed [see Ordinance No. 6283, as Amended, adopted June 9, 2025]. J. Zerbe 
stated that no owners had reached out directly yet but that he was working with the Fairbanks Fire 
Department (FFD) to create an online form that will help build a database of properties.  Mayor 
Pruhs explained that the typical process is that he receives a phone call about a property concern, 
he asks for the matter to be sent to him in writing, then he passes the information along to J. Zerbe 
or the City Engineer. Ms. Sprinkle indicated she hopes for a simple way for owners to register 
their property if they leave town for the winter, as an example. J. Zerbe added that the online form 
will include an easy way for an owner to indicate if they would like a no trespass designation to 
be automatically generated for their property. 
 
Mayor Pruhs invited City Engineer Bob Pristash to provide a report on streetlights. B. Pristash 
discussed lighting problems being addressed across the City, particularly several on the east side 
of town which they learned are tied into a State of Alaska Department of Transportation load 
center, which the City does not have access to. He stated the issues have since been worked out 
between the parties. He reported that some remnant lights across town are still being controlled by 
the City’s outdated photocell, which causes delays in turning on or off. He indicated that many 
problems were resolved this year and that they will keep an eye on certain issues going into winter. 
 
Mayor Pruhs asked for an update on the bicycle path pilot project. B. Pristash recounted that the 
City had nominated a project of this type four years ago and that the overall scope and ideas 
evolved significantly after local planning groups were involved. He noted that the original request 
included numerous bicycle lanes across much of the downtown area but that the City rejected the 
larger scale approach and opted to undertake a pilot project of just two streets: 10th Avenue and 
Barnette Street. He explained that the project will end in September to allow time to remove the 
temporary traffic devices and repaint the roads. Mayor Pruhs asked if there has been any 
community input on the project. B. Pristash stated that they have not had any formal feedback but 
that he has been focusing more on keeping track of any accidents that could be tied to the bicycle 
lanes. He reported that there was one incident where a northbound cyclist on Barnette Street had 
not been paying attention, missed a green light for cross traffic, and hit a vehicle. Ms. Sprinkle 
asked if there was any system in place to track usage, similar to the devices used to count vehicles 
in other road projects. B. Pristash reported that no such system had been in place but that he had 
heard that a manual count was being performed by Fairbanks Area Surface Transportation (FAST) 
Planning. 
 
Mayor Pruhs reported on two recent meetings to work on the letter of interest (LOI) regarding 
the Polaris Building property. He shared that the meeting participants included him, the Chief of 
Staff, the City Engineer, two Councilmembers, and local architect C.B. Bettisworth. He added that 
the City Attorney would have been included had he not been out of town at the time. He stated that 
B. Pristash is working on the LOI, which will be reviewed at the Council’s next meeting. Mayor 
Pruhs explained that the next step would be a public open house in mid-September to include a 
presentation on the overall process, including the LOI period, and the eventual request for proposal 
(RFP) window, which will take place over five months. He asserted that they are trying to make 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 9 

the process as open and as detailed as possible. He pointed out that because the City owns the 
property, the Council will ultimately decide what happens next and that it will do so via a thorough 
public process. 
 
Ms. Therrien asked if the LOI would be reviewed at their next Work Session or Council Meeting 
or if it will be split into multiple meetings. Mayor Pruhs stated that it can all be done in a single 
meeting but that he was unsure if the City Engineer would have it ready by the next Work Session. 
B. Pristash indicated that he could prioritize it to have at least an initial draft available for review. 
Mayor Pruhs suggested that the Council may need a resolution to formally approve the LOI. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Tidwell shared that the Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation (FEDC) had officially 
submitted its application to the State of Alaska Department of Commerce to become the Alaska 
Regional Development Organization (ARDOR) for the Fairbanks area. She discussed how that 
might impact future discussions related to budgeting and economic development initiatives. 
 
Mr. Marney stated he had no comments. 
 
Mr. Ringstad discussed seeing an increase in assaults as reported in the newspaper’s Public Safety 
Report. He declared that there is no simple fix for the problem but that it would take a combined, 
concerted effort by the City, law enforcement, the Department of Corrections, the District 
Attorney’s Office, and potentially the State Legislature. He shared details of recent assaults in the 
downtown area as well as issues with trespassers at his own property.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle spoke of the bicycle lane pilot project and expressed disappointment with the general 
attitude about trying new things. She stated that the pilot project was disparaged and disregarded 
despite not having any data regarding actual usage. She stated that she has heard positive things 
from some people and that she has personally seen the lanes used. 
 
Ms. Therrien shared that she recently saw a handful of youth using the lanes, as well as the 
adjacent sidewalks. She gave a land acknowledgement. She asked if the Council could have a 10-
minute recess before addressing Resolution No. 5182. Mayor Pruhs asked if there was a specific 
reason. Mr. Therrien stated that she had not had a chance to speak with Ms. Tidwell regarding 
the amended, proposed substitute of the resolution that had been hand-carried to the meeting. 
Mayor Pruhs asked if the intent was to take a 10-minute recess for Ms. Therrien to receive an 
explanation of the resolution instead of doing so during the meeting. Ms. Tidwell indicated that 
she was open to having the conversation on the floor. Ms. Therrien suggested that five minutes 
would be sufficient. Mayor Pruhs stated that he would grant a five-minute recess. 
 
Mr. Cleworth spoke to Mr. Ringstad’s comments regarding increasing crime rates. He noted that 
many individuals who cause problems downtown turn out to have lengthy arrest records already. 
He shared that the same people are often back on the street in a short time, and it makes one wonder 
what it takes to actually get prosecuted by the District Attorney’s Office. Mr. Cleworth explained 
that any decisions regarding new bike lanes in the city will ultimately be at the discretion of the 
Council – not outside planning organizations or committees. He shared that during his travels, he 
has noted many approaches to bicycle paths, most of which are fairly simple, yet effective. He 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 9 

discussed less complicated methods, such as adjusting fog lines in various areas to accommodate 
cyclists while leaving room for snow in the winter. He reiterated that the design process of the 
“Complete Streets” approach is intended to be simple, following the example of other states. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for five-to ten-minute recess. He asked to speak directly with Ms. Therrien 
and Ms. Tidwell in his office. 
 
The Council resumed with New Business after a ten-minute recess. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 5182 – A Resolution Requiring That the Polaris Working Group Meetings 

Be Publicly Noticed and Open to Public Participation. Introduced by Councilmembers 
Therrien, Tidwell, and Marney. 

 
Mayor Pruhs asked if there was a motion to APPROVE Resolution No. 5182 and heard none. He 
asked if anyone wanted to discuss the resolution. Mr. Marney asked if the discussion would be 
on the original resolution or the hand-carried, proposed substitute. Mayor Pruhs indicated it 
would be on the original version. Mr. Marney asked if the Council could amend it by replacing it 
with the proposed substitute. Mayor Pruhs stated that he would rather the Council not do that.  
 
Ms. Therrien stated that she would like to WITHDRAW Resolution No. 5182 in order to give it 
more thought and reintroduce it within the next four weeks. 
 
Mayor Pruhs asked if any Councilmember objected. 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that he would like to discuss the whole concept. He noted that the only way 
for the Council to have a discussion on Resolution No. 5182 would be for it to first be placed on 
the floor through a motion. He expressed that he was not in favor of either version of the resolution 
and that he would give his reasonings when appropriate. Mayor Pruhs asked if he could do so 
during Councilmembers’ Comments. Mr. Cleworth stated that he would if the Mayor preferred. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for any other discussion on the matter and, hearing none, declared Resolution 
No. 5182 FAILED due to the lack of a motion. 
 
b) Ordinance No. 6322 – An Ordinance Funding the Collective Bargaining Agreement 

Between the City of Fairbanks and Fairbanks Firefighters Union and Amending the 2025 
City Operating Budget. Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. 

 
ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
a) Permanent Fund Review Board Meeting Minutes of April 30, 2025 
 

ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA 
 



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 9 

b) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of July 2, 2025 
 

ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that this is not the first time the City has been through a process of taking 
ownership of a large property. He stated that in the past, when the City inherited an entire city 
block, the City made both good and bad moves. He explained that the City has learned from those 
mistakes, and he would like to avoid repeating some mistakes with the Polaris property. He 
expressed his view that, for decisions related to the property, the Council should serve as the work 
group, with City staff aiding in the process. He discussed the major issues needing consideration 
moving forward and suggested that an LOI is less effective, as some developers prefer to not show 
their hand and would rather outline details through an actual RFP process. He recommended going 
straight to an RFP with the Council setting clear parameters. He explained common pitfalls of 
ranking proposals and spoke against the practice. 
 
Ms. Therrien gave a report of the Permanent Fund Review Board’s last meeting. She reviewed 
fund performance details and shared info about some actions and opportunities being considered 
by the Board. She noted that there had been no compliance issues from recent audits. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle and Mr. Ringstad each indicated they had no reports or further comments. 
 
Mr. Marney shared that he would be attending a Fairbanks Diversity Council meeting later in the 
week and that he looks forward to meeting the new members. He reported having been asked to 
assist with judging applications for Explore Fairbanks’ Community Engagement Grants and spoke 
highly of positive changes taking place with the organization. 
 
Ms. Tidwell expressed agreement with Mr. Cleworth’s comments regarding the City Council 
being the only decision-making body regarding the Polaris property going forward. She shared 
that she spoke with an individual who works for another local fire department who had heard 
about, and was intrigued by, the City’s new recruitment bonus for paramedics, noting that it was a 
sign that the City’s efforts to get the word out were working. 
 
Mayor Pruhs stated that he also concurred with Mr. Cleworth’s statements and that his experience 
with similar processes will be valuable to the rest of the Council. He reiterated that there is not a 
strict timeline and that the Council will have total discretion with how to proceed.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked what the status was with the final phase of demolition. Mayor Pruhs reported 
that the contractor is removing the last of the debris from the large hole where the structure had 
been and that they will soon start backfilling and compacting the surface. He noted that a total of 
160 storage containers had been brought in to be filled with the remaining contaminated materials 
being removed for disposal. He reiterated that the Council would have ultimate discretion in what 
happens but declared that it will not be turned into a parking lot. 
 
  



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT August 11, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 9 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Clerk Snider shared that a resolution was passed in 2019 that she believes is relevant to the 
Council’s discussion about the Polaris property. She indicated she would send it to the Council. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Attorney Chard expressed appreciation for the continued commitment, professionalism, and civil 
conversations of the Council as it wrestles with large issues and ideas. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to ENTER into an Executive Session to discuss 
AFL-CIO Labor Negotiations. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for a brief recess at 7:56 p.m., after which the City Council, excluding Ms. 
Tidwell, reconvened in Executive Session. 
 
a) AFL-CIO Labor Negotiations [permissible under State law, including the provision at AS 

44.62.310(c)(1)] (ended at 8:25 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that the Council met in an Executive Session to discuss AFL-CIO Labor 
Negotiations. He affirmed that no formal action had been taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Sprinkle, seconded by Mr. Ringstad, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Pruhs declared the meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       DAVID PRUHS, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by: CC 



         
CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
____________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 

800 Cushman Street Telephone (907) 459-6702 
Fairbanks, AK  99701      Fax (907) 459-6710 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Pruhs and City Council Members 
 
FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Alcohol License Renewal Applications 
 
DATE:  August 21, 2025 

 
Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following alcohol license renewal applications:   

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

4862 Southern Glazer’s 
of AK 

General 
Wholesale 

Southern Glazer’s Wine and 
Spirits of Alaska, LLC 

3101 Peger Road, 
Bay 2 

4548 Brewsters Beverage 
Dispensary Restaurant Concepts, LLC 354 Old Steese 

Highway 

5051 Asiana Restaurant Restaurant/ 
Eating Place Young Mi Jin 2001 Airport Way 

 
Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council may determine whether to protest alcohol license 
renewal applications after holding a public hearing. As required by FGC Sec. 14-167(b), I have 
sent written notice of the public hearing to the above-listed licensees.  
 
The renewal applications are scheduled to go before the ABC Board on September 16, 2025. The 
City’s 60-day response deadline to AMCO is also September 16, 2025.  
 

There are no department-recommended protests for these alcohol license renewal applications.  
 



         
CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
____________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 

800 Cushman Street Telephone (907) 459-6702 
Fairbanks, AK  99701      Fax (907) 459-6710 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Pruhs and City Council Members 
 
FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Marijuana License Renewal Applications 
 
DATE:  August 21, 2025 

 
Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following marijauna license renewal applications:   

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

22809 Airport Way Best Bud Retail Marijuana 
Store 

Airport Way Trade 
Center, LLC 3598 Airport Way 

10589 Nature’s Releaf, LLC Retail Marijuana 
Store 

Nature’s Releaf, 
LLC 507 7th Avenue 

39378 Blaze, LLC Retail Marijuana 
Store Blaze, LLC 607 Old Steese 

Highway, Suite 106 

16006 Arctic Bakery, LLC 
Marijuana Product 

Manufacturing 
 

Arctic Bakery, LLC 1409 Well Street 

10869 Grass Station 49 Retail Marijuana 
Store 

The Grass Station, 
LLC 1326 Cushman Street 

 
Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-214 and 3 AAC 306.060, the Council may determine whether to protest 
a marijuana license renewal application after holding a public hearing. As required by FGC Sec. 
14-214(b), I have sent written notice of the public hearing to the above-listed licensees. The 60-
day response deadline to AMCO for these marijuana license renewals is September 19, 2025. 
 
Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-215(b)(12), I have inquired about complaints filed within the past 12 
months with the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and AMCO in regard to these marijuana 
establishments, and no complaints were reported.  
 
There are no department-recommended protests for these marijuana license renewal 
applications.   







































Introduced by: Mayor David Pruhs 
 Introduced: August 11, 2025 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 6322 

 
AN ORDINANCE FUNDING THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS AND FAIRBANKS FIREFIGHTERS UNION 
AND AMENDING THE 2025 CITY OPERATING BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks and the Fairbanks Firefighters Union have been 

operating under the terms of the October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2024 Collective 
Bargaining Agreement; and 

  
WHEREAS, after nearly two years of negotiation, a compulsory mediation, and 

arbitration, the City of Fairbanks and the Fairbanks Firefighters Union have a replacement 
contract; and  
 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Arbitrator’s binding decision, the City of 
Fairbanks and Fairbanks Firefighters Union’s new labor agreement is effective December 
1, 2024 - November 30, 2027, with the economic terms of the agreement detailed in the 
attached fiscal note; and 

 
WHEREAS, if the City Council decides to fund those terms, the City’s 2025 

Operating Budget will need to be amended to include the increased expenditures included 
in the attached fiscal note. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. That the City of Fairbanks’ 2025 operating budget be amended to 
fund the contract per the attached fiscal note. 

 
SECTION 2. The effective date of this ordinance shall be six days after adoption. 

 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



Ordinance or Resolution No: 6322

Abbreviated Title: FAIRBANKS FIREFIGHTERS UNION LABOR AGREEMENT 

Department(s): FIRE

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes X No

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2025 2026 2027 TOTAL

305,130$       305,130$       305,130$       915,390$       
-$               368,430$       368,430$       736,860$       
-$               -$               418,220$       418,220$       

79,180$         87,350$         92,590$         259,120$       
MEDICAL [ULTRASOUND OR BLOOD PANEL] 19,950$         28,500$         19,950$         68,400$         
HOLIDAY CHANGES - SUPPRESSION STAFF 16,160$         35,510$         36,920$         88,590$         

1,390$           1,790$           3,060$           6,240$           

421,810$       826,710$       1,244,300$    2,492,820$    

2025 2026 2027 TOTAL

401,860$       798,210$       1,224,350$    2,424,420$    
19,950$         28,500$         19,950$         68,400$         

421,810$       826,710$       1,244,300$    2,492,820$    

Initial mb Date 8/4/2025

GENERAL FUND [MEDICAL]
TOTAL

This fiscal note provides the cost of removing health care from the package rate as of December 2024 (January 
payment $6,091) and the following wage increases:  suppression staff will receive 4% and administration staff will 
receive 5% effective January 2025; all staff will receive 4% effective January 2026 and January 2027.  The city will 
provide additional medical services with ultrasounds in the odd years and comprehensive blood panels in the even years.  
The suppression staff will receive six personal holidays versus holiday pay for 24 overtime hours or 5.75 hours of pay.  
The administration staff will receive hours per pay period versus annual hours converted per pay period, increasing 
annual leave hours.  With the minimum manning of 11 and mandatory leave slots, the city should experience overtime 
ranging from $300,000 to $400,000.   Note:   The City should anticipate additional costs for annual leave liability and 
worker’s compensation due to wage increases.

Prepared by Finance Department:

ANNUAL LEAVE CHANGES - ADMIN STAFF

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

GENERAL FUND [FIRE]

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
EXPENDITURES:

WAGES AND BENEFITS - JANUARY TO DECEMBER
WAGES AND BENEFITS - JANUARY TO DECEMBER
WAGES AND BENEFITS - JANUARY TO DECEMBER
HEALTH CARE COSTS [CITY AT 80%]

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?











































































































































































 Introduced by:  Mayor Pruhs 
 Date: August 25, 2025 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 5183 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO REQUEST 
AND ACCEPT FUNDS FROM THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH 
(FNSB) FOR FY2026 EMERGENCY SERVICE PATROL (ESP) SUPPORT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks received notification from the FNSB that the City 

is eligible to receive funds to support the Emergency Service Patrol (ESP) during FY2026; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks ESP provides services for city-wide situations of 

non-criminal, non-emergent nature involving individuals under the influence of alcohol 
and/or other drugs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ESP has been expanded beyond the city downtown core and 

includes areas noted as high response areas, including several borough facilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is eligible for $300,000 with no required match 

and will use these funds for the Fairbanks Integrated Community Services, Inc. (FICS) 
contract to provide ESP services. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or his 

designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required for requesting and 
accepting funds from the Fairbanks North Star Borough on behalf of the City to support 
the Emergency Service Patrol. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of this resolution is six days 

after adoption. 
 

 
 _______________________________ 
 David Pruhs, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



Resolution No. 5183 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 5183

Abbreviated Title: FY2026 ESP Support

Department(s): Mayor's Department

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Contracts Personnel Other Costs Total

$300,000  $300,000
 

  
   

 
$300,000 $300,000

Contracts Personnel Other Costs Total

$300,000 $300,000

  
$300,000 $300,000

Initial sf Date 8/11/2025

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

Grant Fund (Local)

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

FICS Contract for ESP Services

 
 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

 
TOTAL

The budget will cover the duration of FY2026 (July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026). 

Reviewed by Finance Department:



Introduced by: Councilmember Marney 
 Date: August 25, 2025 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 5184 
 

A RESOLUTION TO EXTEND THE 2024 FINANCIAL AUDIT 
REMITTANCE FOR EXPLORE FAIRBANKS 

 
WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Sec. 74-117(e)(2) requires remittance of a 

financial audit by September 1 for recipients receiving $500,000 or more in room rental 
tax funds, unless extended by resolution of the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, Explore Fairbanks receives more than $500,000 in room rental tax 

funds from the City of Fairbanks and will be required to provide a financial audit by 
September 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, Explore Fairbanks is requesting an extension to remit the 2024 

financial audit by September 30 (see attached letter). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. The Fairbanks City Council approves an extension to September 

30, 2025, for Explore Fairbanks to remit the 2024 financial audit required by FGC Sec. 
74-117(e)(2).  

 
SECTION 2. The effective date of this resolution is six days after adoption.  

 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 





 

Introduced by:  Councilmember Sprinkle 
Date: August 25, 2025 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 6323 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE CHAPTER 46, 
ARTICLE IV, OFFENSES INVOLVING NUISANCE, ADDING REGULATIONS 

LIMITING THE TIME PERIOD TEMPORARY SIGNS, INCLUDING POLITICAL SIGNS, 
CAN BE DISPLAYED WITHIN THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 

 
WHEREAS, Alaska Statute §19.25 prescribes restrictions for outdoor advertising 

and billboards, including political signage, to preserve Alaska’s uniqueness and its scenic 
beauty; and 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Supreme Court held in Metromedia, Inc. v. City of San Diego 

(1981), explicitly adopted by the Alaska Supreme Court in Barber v. Municipality of 
Anchorage (1989), that a municipality’s aesthetic interests are sufficiently substantial to 
provide justification for a content-neutral restriction of signs; and 

 
WHEREAS, State statute and case law currently regulate time, manner, and place 

of political signage with AS 19.25.105(d) not permitting signs within a right of way and 
Alaska’s Superior Court holding in ACLU of Alaska, et al. v. State of Alaska, et al. (2018) 
that small, temporary, political signs can be located on private property outside of any 
highway right of way as long as no compensation is provided for the right to do so; and 

 
WHEREAS, sections 18.04.010 and 18.96.070(B)(7) of the Fairbanks North Star 

Borough code limit temporary signs in all zoning districts to no more than six months of 
display and permits display only during the months of June through November; and 

 
WHEREAS, the intent of this ordinance, and the direction given for its 

implementation, is to limit temporary signs within the city to mitigate nuisance and blight 
and protect the aesthetic interests of the community in a content-neutral manner. 

   
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Fairbanks General Code Chapter 46, Article IV is amended by 

inserting a new division 3, entitled Temporary Signs, after Division 2 as follows [new text 
in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikethrough font] and renumbering the remaining 
divisions in the Article: 

 
DIVISION 3. – TEMPORARY SIGNS 
 
Sec. 46-138. – Definition 
 
“Temporary Signs” means any device, structure, fixture, placard, signboard, sign, 

display, notice, or form of outdoor advertising displaying graphics, symbols, and/or writing 



Ordinance No. 6323 
Page 2 of 2 

for the primary purpose of communicating with the public that is not permanently affixed 
to the ground or otherwise affixed in a permanent manner to a supporting structure in 
accordance with applicable permitting and regulation.  

 
Sec. 46-139. – Limitation of Period Temporary Signs Can Be Displayed 
 
In addition to any applicable governing rules and restrictions, temporary signs can 

be on display within the city limits for no more than 90 days. 
 
Sec. 46-140. – Remedy 
 
a. A temporary sign that violates the provisions of this Article is a public nuisance. 

The City will give 15 days' notice, by certified mail, to the owner of the land on 
which the sign is located, ordering its removal if it is prohibited. If the owner of 
the property fails to comply within 15 days as required in the notice, the City 
will remove the sign at the expense of the owner of the land.  
 

b. The City retains sole discretion whether to store or dispose of any sign that has 
been removed in accordance with this Article. 

 
SECTION 2. The effective date of this ordinance is six days after adoption. 

 
 

 
_______________________________ 
David Pruhs, Mayor 

 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



Introduced by: Mayor Pruhs  
Date: August 25, 2025 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6324 
 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
SECTION 2-65, CHIEF OF STAFF AUTHORITIES 

 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 4736 gives the authority to the Chief of Staff to sign on the 
Mayor’s behalf when the Mayor is absent or otherwise unable to sign; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been past practice for mayors to delegate the daily operations of the 
City to the Chief of Staff; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Attorney, City Clerk, and Chief of Staff recommend this recurring 
delegation be codified. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. Fairbanks General Code Section 2-65 is hereby enacted as follows [new text 
in bold/underline font]: 
 

Sec. 2-65. – Chief of Staff Authorities. 
 
The Chief of Staff has the responsibility and authority to oversee daily operations of 
the City and to sign on the Mayor’s behalf when the Mayor is temporarily absent or 
unable to sign. 

 
SECTION 2. The effective date of this ordinance is six days after adoption. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       David Pruhs, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



Introduced by: Mayor Pruhs  
Date: August 25, 2025 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6325 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
SECTION 2-63, SUCCESSION TO OFFICE OF ACTING MAYOR, AND 

SECTION 2-64, SALARY OF ACTING MAYOR 
 
 WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Sec. 2-63 and 2-64 refer to the Office of the Acting 
Mayor, but the process for unanticipated succession of the mayor is not clearly defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City needs clear succession procedures should the mayor be unable to 
perform the duties of the office. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. Fairbanks General Code Section 2-63 is hereby amended as follows [new 
text in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 
Sec. 2-63. - Succession to office of acting mayor pro tempore. 
 

Should the office of acting mayor become vacant or should both the mayor and acting 
mayor be absent or unable to perform the duties of the office of mayor, the order of interim 
succession shall be determined as follows: 
 

(1) The councilmember with the longest total period of tenure in office shall assume 
the office of mayor pro tempore. 

 
(2) Should more than one councilmember have the same total period of tenure in office, 

that councilmember who received the largest plurality at the time of histheir more 
recent election shall assume the office of mayor pro tempore. 

 
 SECTION 2. Fairbanks General Code Section 2-64 is hereby amended as follows [new 
text in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 

Sec. 2-64. - Salary of acting mayor pro tempore. 
 
The acting mayor shall receive the same salary as other councilmembers; however, during 
the period when he is acting as the mayor, he shall receive an expense allowance of $10.00 
per day. While serving as mayor pro tempore, the councilmember will forego the 
councilmember salary but will receive compensation equal to what the mayor would 
have received for the same time period. 

 
 SECTION 3. The effective date of this ordinance is six days after adoption. 
 
 



Ordinance No. 6325 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       David Pruhs, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, AK  99701 

Telephone (907) 459-6750 
Fax (907) 459-6761 

DATE: August 21, 2025 

TO: Council Members 

FROM: Tom Chard, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Current Guidance Regarding Mayoral Succession 

A review of guidance currently available on the topic of mayoral succession follows. 

City of Fairbanks Charter 

Prior to a voter-approved amendment to the City Charter in Oct 1995, the Charter included: 

Sec. 2.5 (Repealed, 1995): 

At the next meeting following each regular election the council shall elect one of its 
members to act as mayor during the absence or disability of the mayor. Provision 
shall be made by ordinance for succession to the office of the acting mayor. 

The proposition also added a new section to the Charter providing the following: 

Sec. 4.1.3. Vacancy: 

(a) A vacancy in the office of the mayor occurring within six (6) months before a
regular election shall be filled by the council. The person designated shall serve
until the next regular election and until a successor is elected and has qualified.
If a councilman is chosen, he shall resign his council seat. If a vacancy occurs
more than six (6) months before a regular election, the council shall call a special
election to fill the unexpired term.

(b) The office of the mayor becomes vacant on death, resignation, removal as
authorized by law, including removal for incapacity, or forfeiture of office. The
council shall by ordinance provide for the removal of the mayor on the ground of
incapacity; provided that in no event shall temporary incapacity be the basis for
removal.

(c) The mayor shall forfeit his office if he lacks any of the qualifications prescribed
by the Charter.

Attachment to Ordinance No. 6325 



CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, AK  99701 

Telephone (907) 459-6750 
Fax (907) 459-6761 

CAO Memo – Mayoral Succession Page 2 of 2 

The initiative also added Section 4.1 providing for both the term of the mayor and mayor’s 
responsibilities. Section 4.1(c) provides that “[t]he mayor, subject to council approval, shall 
designate a person to act as mayor during the mayor’s temporary absence or disability.” 

City of Fairbanks General Code 

There are two sections of Code that currently address a vacancy in the office of the Mayor: 

Sec. 2-63. – Succession to the office of acting mayor. 

Should the office of acting mayor become vacant or should both the mayor and acting 
mayor be absent or unable to perform the duties of the office of mayor, the order of 
interim succession shall be determined as follows:  

(1) The councilmember with the longest total period of tenure in office shall
assume the office of mayor pro tempore.

(2) Should more than one councilmember have the same total period of tenure 
in office, that councilmember who received the largest plurality at the time of
his more recent election shall assume the office of mayor pro tempore.

Sec. 2-64. – Salary of acting mayor. 

The acting mayor shall receive the same salary as other councilmembers; however, 
during the period when he is acting as the mayor, he shall receive an expense 
allowance of $10.00 per day. 

State Statute 

AS 29.20.280 provides guidance that defines a vacancy in the office of mayor. There are two 
steps required to declare a vacancy.  

First, the person elected mayor must have acted, or not acted, in a manner 
prescribed by the statute. Those (in)actions include resignation, being physically or 
mentally unable to perform the duties of the office, no longer physically residing in 
the municipality, and being convicted of a felony and certain other offenses.  

Second, if one of these conditions were to occur, a 2/3rds concurring vote of the 
Council would be required to declare the vacancy. 

If a vacancy is declared, provisions at AS 29.20.280(b), depending on the timing, the vacancy 
would either be filled temporarily by the Council or be filled by special election. 


	AGENDA - August 25, 2025
	MINUTES
	Regular Meeting Minutes of August 11, 2025

	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Alcohol License Renewals
	Marijuana License Renewals
	Alcohol License Transfer - This and That Grill, LLC

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 6322

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 5183
	Resolution No. 5184
	Ordinance No. 6323
	Ordinance No. 6324
	Ordinance No. 6325




